AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

TOWNSHIP OF WOODBRIDGE

AND

TEAMSTERS LOCAL UNION NO. 469

Affiliated with the International Brotherhood of Teamsters

Public Works Security Guards

July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE1
ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION1
ARTICLE 2 - HOURS OF WORK / SCHEDULING3
ARTICLE 3 - HOLIDAYS4
ARTICLE 4 - SENIORITY AND PERMANENT EMPLOYMENT SECURITY4
ARTICLE 5 - BULLETIN BOARDS5
ARTICLE 6 - GRIEVANCE MACHINERY5
ARTICLE 7 – SICK LEAVE9
ARTICLE 8 – VACATIONS11
ARTICLE 9 – RIGHTS OF MANAGEMENT12
ARTICLE 10 – RIGHTS OF VISITATION12
ARTICLE 11 – WAGES13
ARTICLE 12 - NO STRIKE OR LOCKOUT13
ARTICLE 13 - UNIFORMS14
ARTICLE 14 - FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE14
ARTICLE 15 – DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY15
ARTICLE 16 - SAVINGS AND SEPARABILITY15
ARTICLE 17 – TERM OF AGREEMENT

PREAMBLE

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ______ day of ______,

2018, by and between the TOWNSHIP OF WOODBRIDGE, a Municipal Corporation of the

State of New Jersey (hereinafter known and designated as the "Employer"), and Teamsters Local

Union No. 469, affiliated with the International Brotherhood of Teamsters, Security Guards

(hereinafter known and designated as the "Union")

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, it is the purpose of this Agreement to prescribe the legitimate rights of those municipal employees working in the Security Guards Department, who are members of the Union, and to provide orderly and peaceful procedures for presenting employee grievances and proposals, and to protect the rights of the public in the Township of Woodbridge.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed as follows:

ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION

Section 1: In accordance with the PERC Certification of Representation Docket # RO-2011-026 the Employer hereby recognizes the Union as the representative of all regularly employed part-time Security Guards employed by the Township of Woodbridge who perform security services at the Woodbridge Township Public Works Facility who have elected to be represented by the Union for the purpose of presenting and making known to the Director of Public Works or his designee their grievances and proposals. Excluded are Managerial executives, confidential employees, police, supervisors within the meaning of the Act, craft employees, professional employees, casual employees and all employees of the Township of

Woodbridge represented by other labor organizations including maintenance workers and maintenance repair workers and all other employees of the Township of Woodbridge.

Section 2: It is further provided that any bargaining unit employee shall have the right at any time to present his own grievance or proposal and to have a Union representative present, at the employee's request.

Section 3: The Employer agrees to deduct the initiation fee, and/or dues from the wages of each member of the Union and to forthwith remit the same to the Union office.

<u>Section 4</u>: The Union agrees to file a dues deduction authorization form with the Employer for each employee, prior to such deductions.

Section 5: The parties understand that the Supreme Court decision in Janus v. Am. Fed'n of State, Cty., & Mun. Employees, Council 31, 138 S. Ct. 2448 (2018) prohibits the deduction of a representation fee without an employee's express, written consent. If an employee consents in writing, such fees will be calculated in accordance with N.J.S.A. § 34:13A-5.5. The Union further acknowledges and states that any employee who pays the representation fee in lieu of dues shall have direct access to the Union Business Agent. If and when any questions arise as to the actual use by the Union of the representative fee, said employee has the right to obtain a review of the representation fee and if, in fact, any part of the representation fee is used for purposes prohibited by this Act, the Union will return a pro rata share of the representation fee to said employee.

If, after a review is made as aforementioned and the employee is unsatisfied with the results thereof, said employee has the right to appeal to a Board appointed by the Governor to hear such appeals as set forth in Section 3 of the Act.

The Employer and the Union further acknowledge that this Article is subject to any rules and regulations promulgated by the Commission to affect the purposes of this Act.

ARTICLE 2 - HOURS OF WORK / SCHEDULING

The administration shall have the right to establish shifts for guards for a total regularly scheduled work week of up to twenty-four (24) hours. Security Guards will select their work schedule under the rules of seniority provided they are deemed qualified in the sole discretion of the Director of Public Works or his designee.

The minimum and maximum hours for part-time employees may only be changed in cases of emergency as determined by the Director of Public Works or his designee.

All employees shall be scheduled for a regular work shift with a regular starting and ending time. A maximum of eight consecutive hours within a 24 hour period of work may constitute a regularly scheduled work shift. References to consecutive hours of work in this Article shall be generally construed to include lunch periods.

Work schedules showing the employee's shifts, work days and hours shall be posted in the shape up room within the Roads Department.

Each employee is to sign time-in and time-out at the designated time log in the designated area at the particular work site.

The regular work day shall be established totaling a maximum of 8 hours, except in emergency situations, in which case the regular work day may be changed at the sole discretion of the Director of Public Works or his designee. Whenever possible, the Director of Public Works or his designee will provide twenty-four (24) hours' notice.

Employees shall be paid for all hours performed outside of their regular scheduled shift at their regular straight time rate for the amount of time actually worked. Employees called in for work outside of their regular schedule will be guaranteed a minimum of four hours of work time.

No employee shall work more than 29.5 hours in any week without the express, explicit approval of the Director of the Department of Public Works or his designee.

Overtime Rates

Employees shall be paid at one and one-half (1-1/2) times their regular rate of pay for all work performed in excess of eight (8) hours in any work day.

ARTICLE 3 - HOLIDAYS

The following shall be paid holidays:

New Year's Day

Labor Day

Thanksgiving Day

Christmas Day

The above holidays shall be paid only to employees scheduled to work on one of these holidays. Employees that work shall be paid at one and one-half (1 ½) times, in addition to the holiday pay.

ARTICLE 4 - SENIORITY AND PERMANENT EMPLOYMENT SECURITY

Section 1: Newly hired employees shall be considered probationary for a period of ninety (90) days from the date of hiring. An employee may be discharged at any time during their probationary period without recourse whatsoever.

Section 2: Upon completion of the probationary period, such employee's seniority shall be effective as of the original date of employment. Seniority shall prevail at all times.

Section 3: For purposes of layoff, displacement and recall rights the Township shall abide by the statutes and regulations governing the New Jersey Civil Service Commission.

<u>Section 4</u>: An employee shall lose all seniority rights for any one or more of the following reasons:

- (a) Voluntary resignation;
- (b) Discharge for just cause;
- (c) Failure to return to work within five (5) working days after being recalled by registered mail, return receipt requested, unless due to actual illness or accident.

 The Employer may require substantiating proof of illness or accident.

Section 5: Notice of all job vacancies shall be posted on bulletin boards in the shape up room within the Roads Department.

ARTICLE 5 - BULLETIN BOARDS

Bulletin boards will be made available to the Union by the Employer in the shape up room within the Roads Department for the purpose of posting Union notices relating to meetings, dues, health and safety, and general Union information. The Employer has the right to request that the Union remove materials from the bulletin boards which is profane, obscene, defamatory of the Employer or its representatives, or which is otherwise in violation of this contract.

ARTICLE 6 - GRIEVANCE MACHINERY

Section 1: It is hereby agreed that the Employer has the right to discharge employees for just cause. The Employer agrees to advise the Union of any such discharge and the reason therefor at the time of such action.

Section 2: A grievance within the meaning of this Agreement shall be any difference of opinion, controversy or dispute arising between the parties hereto, relating to any matter of wages, hours and working conditions, or any dispute between the parties involving interpretation or application of any provisions of this Agreement. Discipline shall not be grieved under this Article, but must be appealed pursuant to the New Jersey Civil Service Laws and Rules as set forth in Section 5 below.

Section 3: Any aggrieved employee shall present his grievance within five (5) working days of its occurrence, or such grievance will be deemed waived by the Union and the employee.

Section 4: In the event of such grievance, the steps hereinafter set forth shall be followed:

Step 1: The employees and the Steward or the employee individually, but in the presence of the Steward, shall take up the complaint with the Immediate Supervisor. In the event the complaint is not satisfactorily settled within three (3) working days, the employee and the Steward shall sign a written complaint and forward the grievance to the next step in the procedure. The Shop Steward shall be permitted reasonable time during working hours to process complaints, at no loss of pay.

Step 2: The Steward will discuss the grievance with the Division Head. In the event that the grievance is not satisfactorily adjusted within three (3) additional working days, both parties shall complete and sign the grievance record form and forward the matter to the next step in the procedure.

Step 3: The Stewards and the Union will discuss the grievance with the Director of the Department of Public Works. The parties shall meet within seven (7) days of the receipt by the Director of the written grievance, and shall promptly convene to consider the grievance. The Director may hold hearings, and gather any information necessary for a decision.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this step, a decision must be announced within seven (7) days of the time the hearing closes. The Director's failure to render a decision within the time prescribed shall constitute a denial of the grievance at this Step. If the grievance is not resolved by the Director, then the Union may forward the matter to the next step in the procedure.

Step 4: If the foregoing steps do not effectuate settlement of the grievance, either party may refer the dispute to the Business Administrator of the Township of Woodbridge, who may convene a hearing within seven (7) days of the receipt by him of the decision of the Director of Public Works. The Business Administrator may hold hearings and gather any information necessary for a decision. The Business Administrator must announce his decision in writing within fifteen (15) days of the close of hearings. Failure to constitute a hearing shall be deemed a denial of the grievance.

Step 5:

- A. If the grievance is still unsettled, the Union Business Agent or Designees, within fifteen (15) working days after the reply of the Business Administrator is due, by written notice to the Business Administrator, may request arbitration.
- B. The arbitration proceeding shall be conducted by an Arbitrator selected by the Employer and the Union in accordance with the procedure of the Public Employment Relations Commission.
- C. The decision of the Arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parties and the Arbitrator shall be requested to issue his decision within thirty (30) days after

- the conclusion of testimony and argument. Thereafter, the employees shall have no further right of administrative appeal.
- D. The Arbitrator shall be bound by the provisions of this Agreement and restricted to the application of facts presented to him involved in the grievance. The Arbitrator shall further be bound by the laws of the State of New Jersey and of the United States. The Arbitrator shall not add to, modify, detract from or alter in any way the provisions of this Agreement. In rendering his written decision, the Arbitrator shall indicate findings of fact and the reasons for making his decision.
- E. Expenses for the Arbitrator's services and the proceedings shall be borne equally by the Employer and the Union. However, each party shall be responsible for the compensation of its own representatives and witnesses. The Business Administrator or designee (on behalf of the Township) or the Business Agent (on behalf of the Union) may request a verbatim record of the proceedings by causing such a record to be made by a certified court reporter, provided the requesting party pays for the reporter's fees and makes copies available without charge to the other party and the Arbitrator.

Section 5: Major Discipline.

A. The Employer shall not discharge or suspend any employee in excess of five (5) working days, except for probationary employees, without just cause. In all cases involving the discharge or suspension of an employee in excess of five (5) working days, the Employer shall immediately notify the employee in writing of his discharge or suspension and the reason therefor. The employee may request a

departmental hearing within five (5) days of his or her receipt of the Preliminary Notice of Disciplinary Action. At any such disciplinary hearing, the employee may be represented by the steward, the local Business Agent, or designee, and a council representative. If no departmental hearing is requested within five (5) days, the departmental hearing shall be considered to have been waived and the Employer may issue a Final Notice of Disciplinary Action.

- B. An employee discharged or suspended in excess of five (5) days must advise his local union in writing, within five (5) working days after receiving notification of such action against him, of his desire to appeal the discharge or suspension.

 Notice of appeal from discharge or suspension in excess of five (5) days must be made to the Civil Service Commission, in writing, within twenty (20) days from the date of discharge or suspension.
- C. Any employee discharged, must be paid in full for all wages owed him by the Employer, including earned vacation pay, if any, no later than the normal pay period.

ARTICLE 7 – SICK LEAVE

<u>Section 1</u>: Employees to receive fifteen (15) days sick leave per year after one (1) year's service, with pay.

Employees with less than one (1) year's service to receive one (1) day of sick leave per month of service, with pay, from the day of regular employment up to and including December 31st, following the day of appointment. Fifteen (15) days sick leave, with pay, to be granted for each calendar year thereafter. During the first three (3) months of employment, employees may accumulate, but not take sick leave.

Section 2: After one (1) year's service, employee shall be entitled to not more than two (2) days for emergency and/or business reasons without loss of pay, provided at least one (1) day's notice is given in writing and that such emergency absence shall be granted one (1) day at a time. No personal day shall coincide before or after the day of a holiday.

Personal days must be used in the year earned and cannot be converted into vacation days.

Should an employee encounter an unexpected emergency wherein he cannot give written notification, then a phone call shall be considered adequate notice provided that said employee subsequent thereto submits documented proof of the emergency.

Section 3: Sick calls will only be accepted by the Recycling Coordinator or his/her designee or his/her extension. The name and number of the Recycling Coordinator will be posted.

Section 4: The Township has developed, in accordance with its managerial prerogative, a Sick Leave Abuse Policy. All Employees employed in the Department of Public Works hereby acknowledge that as of the effective date of this Agreement, they have received the Sick Leave Abuse Policy. Any changes made to the Sick Leave Abuse Policy after the effective date of this Agreement shall be distributed to all employees covered under this agreement in person. All new hires and employees transferred into the Division of Public Works after the effective date of this Agreement shall be provided with a copy of the Sick Leave Abuse Policy. In the event that an employee is suspected of abuse of this policy, said employee shall be subject to the following disciplinary schedule:

- a. 1st Offense Verbal Warning
- b. 2nd Offense Written Warning
- c. 3rd Offense Minor Discipline (1 Day)

- d. 4th Offense Minor Discipline (3-5 Days)
- e. 5th Offense Major Discipline (6+ Days)
- f. 6th Offense Termination

ARTICLE 8 – VACATIONS

Section 1: Up to one (1) year of service, each employee shall receive one (1) working day vacation with pay for each full month of service.

Employees shall receive vacation with pay based on years of service, in accordance with the following vacation table:

1 – 10 years of service

12 days vacation with pay

11 – 20 years of service

15 days vacation with pay

Over 20 years of service

20 days vacation with pay

Section 2: Seniority for vacation selection shall be based on Security Guard seniority, based on the date of hire as a Security Guard. Senior employees shall be given preference for vacation selection. In the event that employees have the same Security Guard seniority, the employee with the greater Overall seniority shall have preference. Transferred employees will choose their vacations whenever their turn arrives within the Security Guard seniority list. No more than one employee covered under this agreement shall be allowed to use vacation during each week of the year. Canceled vacations shall be posted immediately. Employees will be able to bid on these days. Security Guard seniority shall determine the recipient.

Section 3: Any employee eligible for vacation, whose employment has terminated for any reason whatsoever, shall nevertheless receive a pro-rated vacation.

Section 4: Vacation time must be used in the year earned except that when vacation time is not used in the year earned due to business necessity, vacation time may be carried over

into the following year. The time carried over must be used the following year or it will be lost. Employees who believe they will not be able to use their vacation time in the year earned shall obtain the written approval of the Director, or his designee, acknowledging such inability and indicating that it was due to business necessity.

ARTICLE 9 – RIGHTS OF MANAGEMENT

It is recognized that the management of the Township offices, the control of the properties and the maintenance of order and efficiency are solely the responsibilities of the Township. Accordingly, the Township retains the following rights, including but not limited to: selection and direction of the workforce; to hire, suspend, or discharge for just cause; to establish work-related rules and regulations; to decide the staff, scheduling and work assignments; to take disciplinary action for just cause; to assign, promote or transfer; to determine the amount of overtime to be worked; to relieve employees from duty because of lack of work or for other legitimate reasons; to decide on the number and location of facilities; to determine the work to be performed, direct the performance of the work and the amount of supervision necessary; to determine the equipment, methods, schedules, together with the selection, procurement, designing, engineering and the control of equipment and materials; and to purchase services of others, contract, sub-contract or otherwise.

The Township retains all rights of management unless otherwise specifically restricted by law.

ARTICLE 10 - RIGHTS OF VISITATION

The Business Agent or his representatives, or any officer of the Union, shall have admission to the Employer's premises at any time during working hours for the purpose of

ascertaining whether this Agreement is being carried out in good faith or for the purpose of assisting in the adjustment of any grievance which may have arisen.

ARTICLE 11 - WAGES

7/1/2017	7/1/2018	7/1/2020	
\$10.46	\$10.66	\$10.88	

ARTICLE 12 - NO STRIKE OR LOCKOUT

Section 1:

- A. During the term of this Agreement, there shall be no strike, slowdown, or cessation of work on the part of the Union or its members, and no lockouts on the part of the Employer.
- B. The Employer shall have the right to discipline any employee guilty of violating the provisions of subsection A hereof, but the Union shall not be liable for damages for breach of contract in the event that the employees engage in any activity prohibited by this section, but which the Union has not authorized and which the Union has used its best efforts to prevent and terminate. Union liability, however, shall exist in case, but only in case, the Union calls, sanctions, ignores, disregards, or fails to take affirmative action to terminate such strike activity.

Section 2: Protection of Rights\Picket Lines.

It shall not be a violation of this Agreement and it shall not be cause for discharge or disciplinary action in the event an employee refuses to enter upon any property involved in a primary labor dispute, or refuses to go through or work behind any primary picket line, including

the primary picket lines at the Employer's places of business.

The foregoing shall be applicable to the extent permitted by law; nothing herein contained

shall be constituted to be a contract or agreement expressed or implied, which in any manner

violates Federal or State law as presently enacted or amended or interpreted during the term of

this Agreement.

ARTICLE 13 - UNIFORMS

Employees shall receive a clothing allowance as follows:

2017: \$300

2018: \$300

2019: \$300

ARTICLE 14 – FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE

An employee who requests a leave of absence pursuant to State and Federal family A.

leave laws may be granted up to six (6) months of leave without pay, depending on the nature of

the circumstances, consistent with past practice and with Township policy and State and Federal

law.

B. The employer may require an employee to use their accumulated sick and vacation

days concurrently with any leave time granted pursuant to this Article.

C. Employees may be granted unpaid maternity or paternity leave as provided for

under the Family and Medical Leave Act and the New Jersey Family Leave Act. The employer

may require an employee to use their accumulated vacation days concurrently with any leave time

granted pursuant to this Article for baby bonding, but employees may not use their sick time

14

concurrently with leave granted pursuant to this Article for baby bonding. Leave time granted pursuant to this Article for baby bonding must be taken consecutively.

D. If an employee needs family leave for both a family member (that would qualify under NJFLA) and for themselves (that would qualify under FMLA), such employee can submit a request that their NJFLA and FMLA time not run concurrently. The employee will be required to provide appropriate medical documentation for both injuries and illnesses. Upon reviewing a qualifying request and appropriate documentation, the Township will grant the request upon good cause. Given employer concerns of the potential for abuse, this paragraph shall expire on June 30, 2020. Whether this language, other language, or no language addressing this issue will be placed into a successor agreement upon expiration of this contract, shall be determined at negotiations for a successor agreement. Upon expiration, and subject to negotiations for a successor contract, nothing herein shall serve to negate the Township's prior past practice of running family leave time that qualifies for NJFLA and FMLA concurrently.

ARTICLE 15 - DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY

Employees shall be subject to the Township's Alcohol and Drug Free Workplace Policy.

Employees who hold a CDL license shall also be subject to the Township's DOT Alcohol and

Drug Free Workplace Policy.

ARTICLE 16 - SAVINGS AND SEPARABILITY

Section 1: If any Article or Section of this Agreement should be held invalid by operation of law or by any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or if compliance with, or enforcement of any Article or Section should be restrained by such tribunal, pending a final determination as to its validity, the remainder of this Agreement and of any rider thereto, or the application of such

Article or Sections to persons or circumstances other than those to which it has been held invalid, shall not be affected thereby.

Section 2: In the event any Article or Section is held invalid or enforcement of or compliance with has been restrained, as set forth, the parties affected thereby shall enter into immediate collective bargaining negotiations, upon the request of either party, for the purpose of arriving at a mutually satisfactory replacement for such Article or Section during the period of invalidity or restraint. If the parties do not agree on a mutually satisfactory replacement, either party shall be permitted all lawful economic recourse in support of its demands notwithstanding any provision in the Agreement to the contrary.

ARTICLE 17 – TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall become effective as of the first day of July 1, 2017 and shall remain in full force and effect and expire on the 30th day of June, 2020.

ATTEST:	TOWNSHIP OF WOODBRIDGE	
Caryllagen	John Bennett	
	Date:, 2018	
ATTEST:	TEAMSTERS LOCAL UNION NO. 469	
14250234v2 (99 349)	Date:, 2018	



2018 National Preferred Formulary Exclusions

The excluded medications shown below are not covered on the Express Scripts drug list. In most cases, if you fill a prescription for one of these drugs, you will pay the full retail price.

Take action to avoid paying full price, if you're currently using one of the excluded medications, please ask your doctor to consider writing you a new prescription for one of the following preferred alternatives. Additional covered alternatives may be available. Costs for covered alternatives may vary. Not all the drugs listed are covered by all prescription plans; check your benefit materials for the specific drugs covered and the copayments for your plan. For specific questions about your coverage, please call the number on your member ID card.

Express Scripts manages your prescription plan for your employer, plan sponsor, health plan or benefit fund. These excluded medications do not apply to Medicare plans.

Drug Class	Excluded Medications	Preferred Alternatives	
AUTONOMIC'A CENTRAL MERVOUS SYSTEM.	Surnavel Dosepio	sumatriplan injection	
N.A. H. J. D.A. J. March	Emflaza	prednisone solution, prodnisone lablets	
Duchenne Muscular Dystrophy (DMD) Agents	Exondys 51	No alternatives recommended	
Long-Acting Opioid Oral Analgésics	Opana ER, Oxycodone ER	hydromorphone ER, morphine sulfate ER, oxymorphone ER, Hysingla ER, Nucynta ER, Oxycontin	
Narcotic Araigusics	Buprenorphine Patches, Bulrans	fentanyl patches, hydromorphone ER, morphine sulfate ER, oxymorphone ER, Hysingla ER, Nucynta ER, Oxycontin	
Narcofie Antagonists	Évzio	naloxone syringe, Naccan Nasal Spray	
Transmucosal Fentanyl Analgesics	Abstral, Fentore, Lazanda	fentanyl citrate lozenges	
DERMATOLOGICAL Oral Agents for Rosacea	Boxycycline 40 MG Capsules	Oraces	
Topical Acne/Antibiotic Combinations	Aktipak, Veltin	clindamycin/benzoyl peroxide, clindamycin/tretinoln, erythromycin/benzoyl peroxide, Acanya, Onoxlon	
- Topical Agents for Actinic Keratosis	Fluórovračil 0.5% Cream, Zyclara	dictolenac 3% get, fluorouracit 2% solution, fluorouracit 5% cream, imiquimod 5% cream, Carac, Picato	
DIABETES) Blood Glucose Meters & Test Strips	Abbott (FreeStyle, Precision), Bayor (Breeze, Contour), National Medical (Advocate), Omnis Health (Embrace, Victory), Roche (Accu-Chek), Trividia (TRUEtest, TRUEtrack), UniStrip	LifeScan (OneTouch)	
Dipeptidy Peptidase-4/Inhibitors & Combinations	Aloglipčin, Nesina, Onglyza	Januvia, Tradjenta	
Diperior repress-gridinators & combinations	Alogiiotin/Metformin, Kazano, Kombiglyze XR	Janumet, Janumet XR, Jentadueto, Jentadueto XR	
, Glucagon-Like Peptide-L'Agonists	Adlyxin, Tanzeum, Victoza	Bydureen, Byelta, Trulicity	
Sinsulins	Novalin	Humulin	
	Apidra, Flasp, Novolog	Humalog	
l ŁĄK/MOSE Nasal S(erolds	Becanase AQ, Omnaris, Zelonna	budosonide, flunisolide, fluticasone, nometasonu, Qnasi	
Otic Fluoroquinologe Antibiotics	Cetraxal	ciprofloxacin ear solution, elloxacin ear solution, Ciprodex, Otovel	
ENDOCRINE (OTHER) Estrogen and Estrogen Modifiers for Vaginal Symptoms	Femring	estradiol patches, estradiol tablets, yuvatom, Estrace Cream, Estring, Premarin Cream, Premarin Tablets	
Growth Hormones	Nutropin AQ, Nutropin AQ Nuspin, Oninitrope, Salzen, SaizenPrep, Zomacton	Genotropin, Hirmatrope, Norditropin	
Somatostatin Analogs	Sandostatin LAR Depot, Signifor LAR	Sometuline Depot	
Todical Estrogen Gels	Estrogel	Divigel	
Topical Tesiosterane Products	Fortesta, Natesto, Testosterone Gel	AndroGel 1,62%	
GASTRÖINTESTINAL Antlammatory Boylel Agents	Asacol HD, Detzicol, Dipentum, Mesalamine 800 MG Delayed-Rolease	balsatazide disodium, mesalamine 1.2 gm delayed release, sulfasalazine, Apriso, Pentasa	
- Irritable Bowel Syndrome and Chronic Constipation Agents	Trulance Amiltiza, Linzess		
Pancreatic Enzymes	Panéreaze, Pertzye, Ultresa Creon, Zenpep		
Proton Pump Inhibitors	Aciphex Sprinkle, Prevacid Solutab, Prilosec Suspension, Protonix Suspension	resomoprazole, lansoprazole, uneprazole, pantoprazole, rabeprazolo, Nexium Packets	
HEMATOLOGICAL Englishopolesis Stimulating Agents	Aranesp, Epogen, Mircera	Procrit	
Granulocyte Colony Stimulating Factors	Neupogen	Granix, Zarxio	
HEPATITIS Hepatitis-C	Daklinza, Olysio, Sovaldi, Zepatier	Epolusa, Harvoni, Mavyret, Technivie, Viekira Pak, Viekira XR, Vosevi	

Drug Class	Excluded Medications	Preferred Alternatives	
MUSCULOSKELETAL & RREUMATOLOGY Goul Therdoy	Cotchistre	Colorys, Miligare	
Osteoporosis Therapy A	Forteo	Tymlos	
DBSTETERCAL'A GYNECOLDBICAL Gonadetropin-Releasing Hormona (GnRH) Antagonists (for infertility)-	Ganlrelix Acetate	Cetrotide	
Oyulatory Stimulants (Folltropins))	Bravelle, Follistim AQ	Gonal-f, Gonal-f RFF, Gonal-f RFF Redl-ject	
Vaginal Progesterones	Endometrin	Crinone 8% Gel	
DPHTHALMIC , Antiglaticoma Drugs (Bela-Adrenergic Blockers)	Istalol, Timoptic Ocudose	betaxolol drops, levobunolol drops, timolol drops, Alphagan P 0.1%, Combigan	
Artiglaucoma Drugs (Ophthalmic Prostaglandins)	Zhptan	bimatoprost drops, latanoprost drops, Lumigan, Travatan Z	
Ophthalmic Non-Steroidal Anti-Inflammatory Drugs (NSAIDs)	Acuvail, Nevanac	bromfenac drops, diclofenac drops, ketorolac drops, llevro, Prolensa	
DSTEOARTHRITIS If Saluronic Acid Derivatives (Gel-One, Gelsyn-3, Genvisc 850, Hyalgan, Hymovis, Supartz, Supartz FX, Synvisc, Synvisc-One	Euflexa, Monovisc, Orthovisc	
TENAL DISEASE Phosphate Binders	Fosrenol Powder Packet, Renagel	lanthanum, sevelamer carbonate, Phosfyra, Velphoro	
ESPIRATORY. Epinephrine Auto-injector, Systems	Auvi-O, Epinephrine Auto-Injector (by A-S Medication, Impax & Lineage)	Epinephrine Auto-Injector (by Mylan), EpiPen, EpiPen Jr	
Palmonary Anti-Inflammatory Inhalocs	Alvesco	ArmonAir RespiGlick, Arnuity Effipte, Asmanex HFA/Twisthaler, Flovent Diskus/HFA, Pulmicort Flexhaler, QVAR	
Short-Acting Beta, -Agonist whalers	Levalbuterol HFA, Proventil HFA, Xopenex HFA	ProAir HFA/RespiClick, Ventolin HFA	
ROLOGICAL* Erectle Overunction Oral Agents	Levitra, Staxyn, Stendra	Cialis, Ylagra	
WEIGHT, LOSS Weight Loss Azents	Osymia	bonzphetamine, diethylpropion, phentermine	

Indication Based Management

Drug Class	Nonpreferred Medications	Preferred Alternatives
NFLAMMATURY/CONDITIONS? CPlease note that product placement for this class is under consideration and changes may occur based upon changes in market dynamics and new product launches.	All other Brand Name medications for Inflammatory Conditions* are Nonpreferred. Approval may be granted following a coverage review. A trial of one or more Preferred medications is required prior to Initiating therapy with a Nonpreferred medication. A formulary exception may be granted for patients already established on therapy with a Nonpreferred medication.	Actemra, Cosentyx, Enbrel, Humira, Otezla, Remicade, Simpont 100 MG (for ulcerative colitis only), Stelara SC, Xeljanz, Xeljanz XR

Excluded Medications/Products at a Glance					
Abbott (Freestyle, Precision) Ability^ Abstrat Aciphex A Aciphex Sprinkle Acuvail Adderall^ Adderall^ Adderall^ Adderall^ Alogliptin Alogliptin Alogliptin Alogliptin Avesco Androgel 1 %^ Anusol-IG^ Apidra Aranesp Asacol HD Atacand^, Atacand HCT^ Auvi-Q Azor^ Bayer (Breeze, Contour) Beconase AQ Benicar^, Benicar HCT^ Braveile Bupap^ Buprenorphine Patches	Butrans Cetraxal Cokhicine Cymbalta^ Cytomel^ Daklinza Delzicol Dipentum Oxycycline 40 MG Capsules Effexor XR^ Enflaza Endometrin Epinephrine Auto-Injector (by A-S Medications, Impax & Lineage) Epogen Estrogel Evrio Exondys 51 Femring Fentora Flasp Fluorouracil 0.5% Cream follistim AQ Fortao Fortesta	Fosrenoi Chewable Tablet Fosrenoi Powder Packet Ganfretic Acetate Get-One Get-One Getsyn-3 Genvise 850 Glumetza^ Hyalgan Hymovis Imitrex^ Inderal LA^ Intunty^ Istaloi Kazano Kombiglyze XR Lazanda Levalbuteroi HFA Levitre Lexagro^ Librax^ Lovanox^ Lovenox^ Lovenox^ Lunesta^ Mosalamine 800 MG Delayed-Release Minastrin 24 Fe^	Mircera Nasonex^ Natesto National Medical (Advocate) Nesina Neupogen Nevanac Novolig Nutropin AQ, Nutropin AQ, Nutropin AQ Nuspin Olysio Omnaris Omnis Health (Embrace, Victory) Omnitrope Onglyza Opana ER Oxycodone ER Pancreaze Partzye Plaquenil^ Plavix^ Prevacid Prevacid	Pristiq^ Protonix Suspension Protonix Suspension Preventit HFA Provigil^ Prozac^ Qsymia Renagel Roche (Accu-Chek) Saizen, SaizenPrep Sandostatin LAR Dapot Seroquel^, Seroquel XR^ Signifor LAR Singulair^ Sovaldi Staxyn Stendre Straftera^ Sumavel Dosepro Supartz, Supartz FX Synvisc, Synvisc-One Tanzeum Testim^ Tostosterone Gel Tikosyn^	Timoptic Ocudose Tobi Solution^ Tribenzor^ Trividia (Truetest, Truetrack) Trulance Ultresa Unisirip Vallum^ Valtrex^ Veltin Victoza Vogelxo^ Vytorin^ Wellbutrin SR^ Xanax^, Xanax XR^ Xenazine^ Xopenex HFA Zegerid^ Zepalier Zetta^ Zetonna Tiopten Zoloft^ Zomacton Tyclara Zyllo CR^

A Multisource brand exclusion — The generic equivalent of this brand-name medication is covered under your plan. FDA-approved generic medications meet strict standards and contain the same active ingredients as their corresponding brand-name medications, although they may have a different appearance.